University Senate Professional Studies Building, 203A rm. 3

MINUTES OF MEETING February 14, 2022 – Via Zoom

ATTENDANCE: Presiding: Dr. Fran Moran, University Senate President

DEPARTMENTS PRESENT: A. Harry Moore, Darlene Britt; Accounting, Lukas Helikum; African/ Afro American Studies, Jermaine McCalpin; Art, Hugo Bastidas; Biology, Anthony Esposito; Chemistry, Chitra Narayanan; Computer Science, Mort Aabdollah; Counseling Education, Grace Wambu; Criminal Justice, Bill Calathes; Early Childhood Ed., Basanti Chakraborty; Economics, Andres Bossie; Educational Leadership, Michael Sparrow; Educational Technology, Chris Carnahan; Elementary/ Secondary, Vanashri Nargund; English, Barbara Hildner; Finance, Zhimin Wang; Dept. of Earth & Environmental Science, Hun Bok Jung; Fire Science, Walter Nugent; Fitness, Exercise and Sports, Manuela Caciula; Health Sciences, Erin O'Neill; Latin American Studies, Virginia Ochoa-Winemiller; Library, Min Chou; Literacy Education, Michelle Rosen; Management, EunSu Lee; Marketing, Serdar Yayla; Mathematics, Gunhan Caglayan; Media Arts, Joel Katz; Dept. of Multicultural Ed., Vesna Radanovic-Kocic; Dept. of World Languages & Cultures, Marcelo Fuentes; Music, Dance & Theatre,

- iii. The Faculty & Professional Staff Affairs Committee still needs a representative from the College of Professional Studies. Those interested are encouraged to send your name to the Senate office.
- iv. COE rep is needed to serve on the General Education Committee on Assessment and Policy (GECAP). The Committee is asking for volunteers/ nominees to serve. There are currently seven members. The Committee needs 11 members. They can come from any college.
- b. Updates on previous meeting issues:
 - i. Counseling Center Academic Support and Services Committee met with Dr. John Sherry, the new head of Counseling Center and we will be inviting Dr. Sherry to present at the March meeting.
 - ii. Cross-listing of courses: Discussions are underway between the Provost's Office, Registrar, and Senate.
 - iii. Academic Support and Services has also begun discussion on changes to our course scheduling blocks and is gathering information.
 - iv. Following the November meeting where we had several of our student senators raise concerns about the student experience at NJCU. The *Gothic Times* published an article interviewing the student senators and administration response to the concerns. In response to an inquiry on the status of those concerns, Dr. Moran reached out to SGA and our Student Senators to explore the ways the Senate can assist. An update will be provided at the March meeting.
- c. Updating Policies
 - i. Policy on Honorary Degrees is being worked on in the Faculty & Professional Staff Affairs Committee. Need to discuss with Administration and get DRAFT to Senate to move along. To be discussed in the March meeting.
 - ii. Search Committee guidelines are in discussion with the Provost's Office; the need to update the guidelines was recognized. This work has not yet begun. The Senate will be updated.
 - iii. Establishment of Departments and Centers Policy is from 1979. In discussion with the Provost's Office, the need to update the policy was recognized. This work has not yet begun. We do expect to have a revision ready for Senate review at the March meeting.

VII. SACC Report:

- a. The Senate approved the following department name changes:
 - i. Department of Sociology and Anthropology to Department of Sociology, Anthropology, and Social Work
 - ii. Department of Chemistry to Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry
 - iii. The Senate discussed the inconsistent processes used for name change. There is a need to formalize the process.

- b. Senate Approved Program Proposals:
 - i. BA in Music, Multi-Style Strings
 - ii. BS in Forensic Chemistry
 - iii. Minor in Business Information Systems
- c. New Business
 - i. Academic Support & Services Committee (AS&S) and the Solar Task Force. We noted that the solar committee was folded into the Sustainability Council, but that body had not yet met. We invited Aaron Aska to present an update at today's Senate meeting, and, as an aside, the Sustainability has begun meeting and the Senate is represented.
- d. COVID
 - i. The President will discuss current class modalities and offerings with the Provost as soon as possible.
 - ii. Testing is still being done, especially for athletes.
 - iii. Will work on COVID testing availability for Fort Monmouth.
 - iv. Report65 will be updated for course modality.

VIII.Resolution for Senate to meet on Zoom

- a. Andrew Bossie asked to introduce a resolution to vote as a body on whether we will stay online for the rest of the semester.
- b. Fran Moran: Ruled it out of order. Reason: We don't get to tell the University where we meet. If the University says everything is live, then we are going to go live. We are going to follow whatever the University policy.
- c. Joe Moskowitz motioned: The senate seeks to decide for itself whether it will meet on campus or using Zoom and calls upon the administration to accept the Senate's ability to make the decision for itself.
 - i. Fran Moran: Ruled out of order: Stated why: We can't pass things that would go against university policy or any state policy.
 - ii. Joe Moskowitz: Motion would go to the Admin at SACC asking the

- ii. Digital Kisok in GSUB
- iii. April elections & year end events prep
- d. SGA Expansion
 - i. Student Veterans now has SGA budget and parameters
 - ii. Dreamers Club, Dance Club, Test Prep Club

X. University Senate Committee Reports:

- a. Graduate Studies Committee: Dr. Amit Mokashi & Dr. Xiaodi Zhu, Co-Chairs (Attachment #2)
 - i. The committee was asked to review the "policy for program revisions." The committee is considering using AIC manual and Middle States Substantive Changes Policy as guidelines. They will review both manuals and suggest a list of items to be reviewed and approved by the Senate.
 - ii. The committee reviewed and approved the course inactivation proposal for LTED 642: Seminar in Reading: Select Topics
 - 1. Deactivation by Fall 2022
 - 2. Action Item: Approved by Senate
- b. Community Engaged Learning Committee, Dr. Jennifer Musial, Chair (Attachment #3)
 - i. Community Engaged Learning (CEL) is now a drop-down menu in PeopleSoft allowing students an easier search.
 - ii. Jennifer Fitzgerald passed along list of requests to the third-party developer at CIM so that faculty proposing or amending courses can label them as CEL courses. It will be a check box.
 - iii. The Committee is modifying the rubric for the approval device for CEL courses; hopefully for Fall 2022.
- c. Curriculum & Instruction Committee (C&I), Dr. Michael Rotenberg-Schwartz, Chair (Attachment #4)
 - i. Approved certificate: Certificate in Behavior Management and Introductory Applied Behavior Analysis
 - ii. Approved course: EESC: Environmental Law and Politics
 - iii. Approved course: EESC: Natural Disasters and Society
 - iv. Approved course: EESC: Environmental Justice for Our Community
 - v. Approved course: FINC: Analysis and Design of Business Information Systems
 - vi. Approved course: FINC: Basics of Business Telecommunications and Technology Infrastructure
- d. Faculty & Professional Staff Affairs Committee, Ms. Khadija Diop, Chair (Attachment #5)
 - i. The Committee has been tasked with reviewing the Emeritus Nomination Applications and has begun the process. The committee met once to discuss applications and has another one scheduled following the Senate meeting of February 14th, 2022.

ii.

two adjuncts have been hired for year 1, teaching 6cr. (\$10,230) and second year, adjunct cost doubles to (\$20,460). Friendly recommendation, to hire a position of the NTTP.

- 2. Not Approved: BA Elementary Education (K-6) with Literary Focus 120 cr. Received 12/21/2021. Requested a budget, the narrative states the program will use adjuncts, what will be the revenue, grant funds used, and how will they impact this program?
- Reviewed: Reading Specialist Certification, MA 33cr. Received 1/18/2022. Credits changed for this program. Reviewed by Committee; no budget consequences. Report to the University Senate Planning, Development and Budget Committee 2021.
- 4. Reviewed: School Psychology Professional Diploma, MA 74cr. Received 2/1/2022. Reviewed, curriculum changes only.
- 5. Not Approved: Minor in Environmental Studies, BS 24 cr. Undergraduate Minor. Received 2/1/2022. Table 5. For year 1, one adjunct is projected (9cr.) and one full time faculty teaching (3cr.). Then sequential years as enrollment increases, adjuncts and faculty remain the same. Full time faculty are projected on the AFT contract dated 2015-2019. Requested an update.
- 6. Max Herman discussed that the Supplemental Instruction Budget has been cut by \$2 million for the University and \$1 million for the College of Arts and Sciences. This budget is used to pay adjuncts and overload pay. The proposed budget for AY 2022/23 is set by the Administration. This budget was cut due to declining enrollments. This will impact the Committee's review of programs that may depend on the utilization of adjuncts, especially new programs. This may impact course caps for full-time faculty. The question is, how Qq 1 0 0 (y ne) 0.0.2 (a)71 sc q 2 (,c) 0.2 ((ni)

- d. Ethan Prosen Stated that to his knowledge, the Science Dept. does not use grant money for supplemental budget. Yufeng Wei agreed and declared that statement should be removed from report.
- e. Max Herman There is a \$1 million cut in the CAS budget. The Dean gave a Feb. 15 deadline to cut classes for adjuncts. Jim White has been invited but has not attended for clarification.
- 7. Committee: Denise Serpico stated that with the changing population of Jersey City, gentrification may likely have an impact on the students that attend NJCU. Her suggestion was to create additional MS/MA programs.
- 8. Joe Moskowitz: Will the PD&B have a role in the budget discussions. Joyce Wright will make the request.
- XI. Sustainability Update: Dr. Aaron Aska, VP, Chief Operations Officer, Operations & Innovations
 - a. 5 years ago, NJCU participated in Global Sustainability Survey. 50 questions/6 categories (country rank): Setting and Infrastructure (26); Energy & Climate Change*(17); Waste*(26), Water (26), Transportation* (7), Education (21). Country Ranking: (8); Global Ranking (406/956). (* Indicates strengths)
 - b. Growth since 2017
 - c. 2021 highest ranking
 - d. Challenging year because of COVID but scored high on COVID related questions: Response to COVID – Maintained activities during COVID; Health & Wellness Center; Testing and vaccination; Sanitizer stations.
 - e. Other strengths: Lactation room; 24/7 security dispatch; Energy efficient equipment, Building Management System (BMS); Recycling program for waste is extensive; Hydration stations; Hand sanitizing stations; Efficient water usage; Shuttle service, zero emission vehicles and charging stations; Pedestrian paths; Decreased parking; BA in Sustainability; 70 scholarly publications; Cultural

WHEREAS the COVID pandemic is not over.

AND WHEREAS online meetings engender more participation and engagement. AND WHEREAS online meetings have become a ubiquitous tool of all types of organizations.

AND WHEREAS NJCU itself is becoming a university with multiple satellite campuses.

AND WHEREAS Senate membership deserves to know well in advance how meetings will be conducted so schedules can be organized.

BE IT SO RESOLVED that the NJCU Senate will remain online for all of the Spring 2022 semester.

BE IT SO RESOLVED that a vote will be held at the last meeting of every semester starting May 2022 so that the Senate can decide as a democratic body the mode (online or in person) in which meetings will be held for the following semester. In the event a vote is not taken by the end of the semester, or the vote is tied the mode stays the same for the following semester.

Zoom Vote: 42-2 Approved

Adjourned: 3:29 pm

Respectfully submitted by: Venessa Garcia, University Senate Secretary